
If you require an adjustment to enable you to participate or access the meeting, please 
contact the Democratic Services team at least 48 hours before the meeting. 

ASHFIELD DISTRICT COUNCIL  
 
 

Council Offices, 
Urban Road, 

Kirkby in Ashfield 
Nottingham 
NG17 8DA 

 

Agenda 
 
Scrutiny Panel B 
 
 

Date: Thursday, 15th October, 2020 

Time: 7.00 pm 

Venue: Ashfield District Council’s YouTube Channel 

  

For any further information please contact: 
 

Lynn Cain 
 

l.cain@ashfield.gov.uk 
 

01623 457317 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCFr4nJ9HVt9NAg1MlRMb4kw/featured


 

 

SCRUTINY PANEL B 

Membership 

 

Chairman: Councillor Christian Chapman 

Vice-Chairman: Councillor Trevor Locke 

 
Councillors:  
Ciaran Brown Melanie Darrington 
Dale Grounds Phil Rostance 
David Walters  

 
 
 

FILMING/AUDIO RECORDING NOTICE 
 
This meeting may be subject to filming or audio recording. If you have any queries 
regarding this, please contact Members’ Services on 01623 457317. 
 
 
 
 

SUMMONS 
 
You are hereby requested to attend a meeting of the Scrutiny Panel B to be held at the 
time and on the date mentioned above for the purpose of transacting the business set out 
below. 
 

 
Carol Cooper-Smith 
Chief Executive 



 

 

AGENDA Page 
 
1.   To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

 
 

 

2.   Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary or Personal Interests and 
Non Disclosable Pecuniary/Other Interests.  
 
 

 

3.   To receive the minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 23 
July 2020.  
 
 

5 - 10 

4.   Scrutiny Review - Community Protection Service.  
 
 

11 - 20 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

SCRUTINY PANEL B 
 

Virtual Meeting held on Thursday, 23rd July, 2020 at 7.00 pm 
 
 

Present:  
 

Councillor Christian Chapman in the Chair; 

 Councillors Ciaran Brown, Dale Grounds, 
Trevor Locke and David Walters. 
 

Apologies for Absence: Councillors Melanie Darrington and 
Phil Rostance. 
 

Officers Present: Lynn Cain, Daniel Griffin, Jack Harrison, 
Mike Joy, Antonio Taylor, Rebecca Whitehead 
and Shane Wright. 
 

In Attendance: Councillors Helen-Ann Smith and 
Jason Zadrozny. 
 

 
 
 
 

SB.1 Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary or Personal Interests 
and Non Disclosable Pecuniary/Other Interests 
 

 No declarations of interest were made. 
 

 
SB.2 Minutes 

 
 RESOLVED 

that the minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 10 March 2020, be 
received and approved as a correct record. 
 

 
SB.3 Scrutiny Review: Community Protection Service 

 
 The Service Manager, Scrutiny and Democratic Services introduced the item 

to the Panel and welcomed everyone present to the meeting.  Unfortunately, 
the invitations extended to the Chief Inspector, Mark Dixon and 
Neighbourhood Policing Sergeant Kate Long, had been declined due to 
conflicting work requirements but both had expressed their desire to attend a 
future meeting and take part in the Community Protection Service review. 
 
Members reacquainted themselves with the previous work undertaken by the 
Panel to set the framework in place to facilitate the review.  Presentations had 
previously been given by the Service Manager, Community Safety alongside 
the Anti-Social Behaviour and Triage Team Manager to enable Members to 
gain an insight into the current role of the Community Protection Officer (CPO) 
and preliminary discussions had set parameters to achieve the desired 
outcomes to the review. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

 
Community Protection Officer Role 
To assist the Panel further, the Service Manager, Community Safety reiterated 
the responsibilities of the CPO’s and explained the many strands to the role 
which required both a reactive and proactive approach.  A schedule was 
shared on screen to enable the Panel to get a sense of the diverse range of 
requests that CPO’s were tasked with including: 
 

 foot patrols; 

 dealing with incidences of anti-social behaviour; 

 assisting homeless people; 

 untaxed vehicles; 

 fly tipping and evidence searching; 

 delivering food packages; 

 neighbour disputes; 

 children playing in unsafe buildings; 

 dispersing groups on parks and open spaces; 

 litter picks with former offenders. 
  

The Panel’s Vision for the CPO Role 
The overarching requirement of the review was to establish clear service 
objectives for the CPO role that were fit for purpose and mirrored the vision of 
both the Council and its Members for a robust, effective community safety 
service for the District. 
 
Members were asked to consider what they believed to be the right mix of 
responsibilities for the CPO role, taking on board both the more reactive 
enforcement side of their duties and the more proactive approach undertaken 
as part of their connection and promotion of well-being within communities. 
 
Working in Partnership 
Following a question, the Panel considered the current collaborative working 
arrangements with the Police and how information was shared effectively 
between the two services.  Daniel Griffin and Jack Harrison, the two CPO’s in 
attendance at the meeting, spoke positively about the working arrangements 
and the willingness on both sides to work together to achieve outcomes.   
 
The airwaves radio system, shared by the Police and CPO’s, was an excellent 
communication tool and allowed for requests for back up, assistance and 
information as required. The Council were also working with the Police to 
enable the CPOs to have access to their ‘safe system’ which would enable a 
greater level of information sharing to support their work further. 
 
The Anti-Social Behaviour and Triage Team Manager also attended both joint 
tasking meetings and Police briefings as required. 
 
Community Protection Officer Powers 
Members acknowledged some of the powers currently vested in the CPO’s, as 
follows: 
 

 Require the name and address of a person who has committed a criminal 
offence or acting in an anti-social manner; 

 

Page 6



 

 Confiscate alcohol, cigarettes and tobacco from young people; 
 

 Require the removal of abandoned vehicles; 
 

 Require a person to stop drinking in a designated public place and leave; 
 

 Issue fixed penalty notices for dog fouling, littering, graffiti and fly posting; 
 

 Issue a penalty notice for disorder for: 
o The sale of alcohol to a person under 18 
o Buying or attempting to buy alcohol by a person under 18 
o Consumption of alcohol by a person under 18 
o Wasting police time or giving a false report 
o Behaviour likely to cause harassment, alarm or distress; 
 

 Housing enforcement action against Council tenants; 
 

 Statutory nuisance powers for bonfire and noise nuisances etc. 
 
Triage Service and Out of Hours Response 
In answer to a Member question, the Panel were advised that the Council’s 
Community Safety triage service was only operational during working hours.  
The service was designed to enable designated staff to assess cases as they 
came in and referring them to the most appropriate place i.e. Community 
Protection Team, Anti-Social Behaviour Caseworkers or the Complex Case 
Team.   
 
After 5.00pm, any calls/emails are diverted to the CCTV control room and are 
picked up by the ‘out of hours’ officers.  The airwave radios are still operational 
at these times including a duty phone that ensures contact can be made at all 
times to assess cases and target resources accordingly. 
 
Additional Powers due to COVID-19 outbreak 
Members were advised that no new powers had been granted thus far to the 
Community Safety service as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
Case Recording by Officers 
A spreadsheet template was shared on screen which gave an example of the 
types of data capture required by the CPOs as they undertook their daily 
duties.  The recording template had been created by the Community Safety 
Team and the CPO’s in attendance confirmed that populating the spread sheet 
was working well and did not inflict too much pressure on their time. 
 
Some of the date captured in the spreadsheet included: 
 

 Date and time of incident/case; 

 What powers were used to address the issue; 

 Location; 

 If welfare visits had been undertaken; 

 Surveys carried out; 

 Referrals to Police/Other Agencies; 

 FPN’s issued. 

Page 7



 

 
Notwithstanding the use of the spreadsheet, the main recording software for 
cases/incidents was via the multi-partnership E-Cins system.   Members were 
advised that the system was very positive if populated regularly by all partners, 
but data extraction and the formulation of accurate reporting documents was 
proving to be difficult and at times, somewhat unreliable. 
 
Members commented that the data spreadsheets must prove useful for 
revealing hotspot areas within the District and whilst the Service Manager, 
Community Safety concurred with the comments, she reiterated that the 
CPO’s knowledge of the District and problems being experienced within 
certain areas and with certain individuals was second to none.  This 
continually proved invaluable in the Council’s efforts to address escalating 
problems as they arose. 
 
Rehabilitation of Offenders 
The CPO officers also spent time trying to rehabilitate young ASB offenders 
and the Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Community Safety explained 
that a litter pick was often far more effective at curbing bad behaviour than a 
monetary fine.  Giving a sense of responsibility to the offender often proved 
more effective and Members acknowledged that additional welfare concerns 
associated with the offender usually became apparent once checks on their 
background were initiated. 
 
Leader of the Council 
The Leader of the Council took the opportunity to address the Panel and 
raised concerns that appropriate enforcement and issuing of FPNs to 
offenders did not seem to be happening. With particular reference to dog 
fouling, he felt disappointed that the streets and parks were still battling with 
problem but the issuing of FPN’s by CPO’s still remained worryingly low. 
 
Having mooted that the introduction of targets for FPN issue might assist with 
the problem, the Service Manager, Community Safety reiterated that the CPOs 
had been working extremely hard through the COVID-19 pandemic and that 
the service had been stretched with the vast range of activities and conflicting 
priorities. 
 
Following the comments a brief discussion took place and Members were in 
disagreement that monetary targets alone would provide an adequate solution 
to environmental issues such as littering and dog fouling.  However, they did 
concede following a comment from the Service Manager, Community Safety 
that a more proactive response from the CPOs and the PCSOs to challenge 
dog walkers to provide evidence of receptacles for collecting dog waste would 
be a step in the right direction. 
 
Next Steps 
Following the discussion, Members made suggestions for data capture to 
inform the review and agreed that a preliminary survey of Members would be 
useful to ascertain their ideas/visions/priorities for an effective CPO service 
going forward.   
 
 
 

Page 8



 

The Service Manager, Scrutiny and Democratic Services suggested that in the 
time available prior to the next Panel meeting on 17 September 2020, informal 
working groups could be arranged to ensure Members had an opportunity to 
meet with associated stakeholders and ascertain their perceptions/views in 
respect of the service.  Members might also wish to further consider the best 
mechanisms for effectively monitoring and managing the service. 
 
RESOLVED 
that the Service Manager, Scrutiny and Democratic Services be requested to 
undertake the following in readiness for the next Panel meeting on 17 
September 2020: 
 
a) undertake a survey of all Ashfield Members to ascertain their ideas, visions 

and priorities for the delivery of an effective CPO service; 
 
b) arrange sufficient informal group meetings to offer an opportunity for the 

Panel and appropriate officers: 
 

 to meet with associated stakeholders and ascertain their 
perceptions/views in respect of the Community Protection service 
including: 

 
Police Chief Inspector, Mark Dixon; 
Neighbourhood Police Sergeant, Kate Long; 
Leader of the Council; 
Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for Community Safety; 
Community representatives;  

 

  to consider the best mechanisms and technology for effectively 
monitoring and managing the Community Protection service and its 
employees in the future.  

 
 
 
 
The meeting closed at 8.20 pm  
 

 
 
Chairman. 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



   

 

Report To: SCRUTINY PANEL B Date: 15 OCTOBER 2020 

Heading: SCRUTINY REVIEW: COMMUNITY PROTECTION SERVICE 

Portfolio Holder: NOT APPLICABLE 

Ward/s:  ALL 

Key Decision: NO 

Subject to Call-In: NO 

 
Purpose of Report 
 
The Council’s Community Protection Service was added to the Scrutiny Workplan 2019/20 in July 
2019 and was subsequently added to the Scrutiny Workplan 2020/21 by Members of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee. Members wished to consider the objectives and remit of this discretionary 
service, how it works with partners to achieve these objectives, and to ensure that it remains fit for 
purpose and provides value for money. 
 
The purpose of this report is to provide Members with an update regarding the Council’s Community 
Protection Service, including recent recruitment efforts, restructuring, and success stories. At the 
meeting, discussions will be held on potential recommendations to be considered for approval and 
submission to Cabinet within a final report summarising the findings of the review.  
 

Recommendation(s) 

 
Scrutiny Panel B Members are recommended to: 
 

a. Note the information contained in this report. 
 

b. Consider and approve recommendations to be submitted to Cabinet in a final report.  

 
Reasons for Recommendation(s) 
 
The Council’s Community Protection Service was added to the Scrutiny Workplan 2019/20 in July 
2019 and subsequently added to the Scrutiny Workplan 2020/21 by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee in June 2020.  
 
Alternative Options Considered 
 
No alternative options have been considered at this stage of the review. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



 
Detailed Information 
 
Community Protection Service Overview 
 
Please see an overview of the Council’s Community Protection Service provided by the Service 
Manager – Community Safety.  
 
Working Times/Hours 
 
Community Protection Officers form the high visibility uniformed service operating between 8am and 
10pm, seven days per week.  There are 10 CPOs on the establishment, this equates to 50 shifts 
over the seven-day period covering 14 hours per day. The CPOs contract allows for CPOs to work 
between 7am and 12pm with a four-week notice period for shift pattern changes.  The service 
benefits from the goodwill of officers to change their shift pattern at late notice on occasions to 
accommodate service and community needs.  
 
Mobility of Community Protection Officers 
 
CPOs were based in the localities they served when the service first started at Police stations and 
are now based at Kirkby Council Offices. CPOs have 1 dedicated CPO vehicle and use the IT 
vehicle (566) most days/evenings and borrow a van (520) from the depot Friday evening to Sunday 
evening.   
 
Area based Community Protection Officers 
 
When the service originally started, 16 CPOs covered the district and were ward based (16 wards) 
and predominantly worked evenings and weekends. 
 
The same challenge exists today as per when the service first started regarding coverage on rest 
days, holidays and sickness when having area-based CPOs.  Equally without having area-based 
CPOs there is a challenge in recognising the perpetrators (by only coming into contact periodically 
rather than daily), of building community intelligence and confidence with residents who may not 
report without dedicated officer support. 
 
There are priority areas in the District: 
 

 Sutton Town Centre - One dedicated Community Protection Officer. 
 

 Leamington Estate - One concentrated Community Protection Officer (also covers Sutton on 
a demand request basis).  
 

 Carsic Estate - One concentrated Community Protection Officer (also covers Sutton on a 
demand request basis).  
 

 Kirkby East (Coxmoor) - Two concentrated Community Protection Officers (also cover Kirkby 
on a demand request basis). 
 

 Hucknall East (Butlers Hill and Broomhill) - Two concentrated Community Protection Officers 
(also cover the rest of Hucknall/Rural on a demand request basis).  
 

Page 12



 Hucknall Town Centre - One concentrated Community Protection Officer (also covers the 
rest of Hucknall on a demand request basis).  

 
A recent change to the Community Protection Service was introducing a ‘duty CPO’ to receive 
demands, allocate or undertake initial visits and problem solving.  
 
Community Protection Officer – Activities 
 
Community Protection Officers continue to undertake a wide range of activities to support 
communities and ensure the safety of Ashfield residents. These activities include: 
 

 Supporting the Private Sector Enforcement Team with traveller encampments. 
 

 Offering ongoing support as a visible presence in the District’s town centres. 
 

 Providing daily patrols, interaction and enforcement in Sutton Town Centre, focusing on 
street drinking and anti-social behaviour.  

 

 Responding to reports received from residents regarding bonfires and noise and issues in 
public spaces. 

 

 Providing a visible presence by undertaking patrols in hotspot locations in our parks, estates, 
town centres and cemeteries. 
 

Additionally, Members will be pleased to learn that since the previous meeting of the Panel, the 
Council has successfully recruited 3 new Community Protection Officers as well as a Community 
Protection Officer Team Leader. Furthermore, the Council has launched a national recruitment 
search for senior leaders to help deliver the Council’s aspirations, including a Service Manager – 
Place and Wellbeing (including Community Safety).  
 
Recent News 
 
Early in this review, Members discussed the need for the work of the Council’s Community 
Protection Service to be effectively communicated to residents to demonstrate the value of the 
services. Several news stories regarding the work of the Community Protection Service have 
recently been published on the Council’s website. Please see some examples: 
 
Anti-Social Behaviour Task Force – 07/09/2020 
 
The Council has recently established a multi-agency taskforce as a response to ongoing anti-social 
behaviour in Sutton Town Centre and Portland Square area, which has been causing a nuisance to 
local shoppers, residents, and traders. As part of the multi-agency taskforce, the Council will be 
working with Nottinghamshire Police, Housing Options, and Framework to tackle all aspects of the 
issues present.  
 
The Council’s Community Safety Team is taking a zero tolerance approach to Anti-Social Behaviour 
in Sutton Town Centre. 

The Council have set up the multi-agency taskforce as a response to the ongoing Anti-Social 
Behaviour in the town centre and Portland Square area which has been causing a nuisance to local 
shoppers, residents and traders. The Council will be working closely with Nottinghamshire Police, 
Housing Options and Framework to tackle all aspects of the issues. 

Page 13



Community Protection Officers have already completed a large number of confiscations of alcohol 
and issued Fixed Penalty Notices. The Council’s Anti-Social Behaviour Team are taking further 
legal action to address the behaviour of some individuals by obtaining Community Protection 
Notices and injunctions against repeat offenders. 

The taskforce is also providing support to the more vulnerable residents. This follows the work that 
the CPOs, Complex Case Team and Housing Options have already been carrying out, engaging 
with homeless residents to provide support to help them access our services.  

Cllr Samantha Deakin, Ward Councillor for Sutton Central and New Cross, said “Anti-Social 
Behaviour will not be tolerated and we are working closely with the appropriate agencies to ensure 
the action is taken to stop it. We know how disruptive anti-social behaviour can be and we are 
determined to tackle the issue head on. 

“We want our town centres to be enjoyable places for everyone to visit, and we are going to be 
investing heavily into Sutton with the available funding from the Towns Fund. We don’t want visitors 
and residents to be put off because of the behaviour of a few individuals. 

“The Council is committed to making Ashfield and safer place to live, and visit, and by creating this 
new taskforce we are demonstrating that we will take reports of Anti-Social Behaviour seriously.”   

 
 
For full details: https://www.ashfield.gov.uk/mediacentre/news-and-updates/council-set-up-new-
taskforce-to-tackle-anti-social-behaviour-in-sutton/ 
 
Community Protection Officers Serving the Community Through Lockdown – 25/08/2020 
 
Ashfield District Council’s Community Protection Team have been busy serving the community 
throughout lockdown. 

On top of their recent efforts assisting with the Community Hub, the Community Protection Officers 
have also been busy issuing Fixed Penalty Notices for littering, engaging residents about social 
distancing, supporting Nottinghamshire Police and responding to incidents throughout Ashfield. 

One of these incidents happened whilst on routine patrol on The Lawn, Sutton, on 11th August, 
Community Protection Officers (CPOs) discovered a young person who had been badly assaulted. 
The CPOs reported the incident to Nottinghamshire Police and provided first aid assistance at the 
scene. They then escorted the young person and their mother to Kings Mill for further treatment.  

Later that same week on 16th August, CPOs received intelligence that two people had stolen meat 
from the Co-op in Kirkby. The Council CPOs spotted the suspects, following an area search, and 
monitored their activity whilst they informed the police of their whereabouts. This led to the pair 
being arrested by the police.   

Cllr Helen-Ann Smith, Cabinet Member for Community Safety at Ashfield District Council, said “This 
is a perfect example of partnership working and how important it is that we continue our close 
working relationship with Nottinghamshire Police. 

“The Community Protection team have been working extremely hard throughout lockdown, from 
doing welfare checks on vulnerable residents to regular patrols of the District. They have been 
providing an invaluable service to the residents of Ashfield. 

“We will continue to work closely with Nottinghamshire Police wherever possible as we are 
committed to ensuring our residents feel safe in their community.” 

 
 

Page 14

https://www.ashfield.gov.uk/mediacentre/news-and-updates/council-set-up-new-taskforce-to-tackle-anti-social-behaviour-in-sutton/
https://www.ashfield.gov.uk/mediacentre/news-and-updates/council-set-up-new-taskforce-to-tackle-anti-social-behaviour-in-sutton/


For full details: https://www.ashfield.gov.uk/mediacentre/news-and-updates/ashfield-district-council-
community-protection-officers-steak-out-shop-lifters/ 
 
Review Summary 
 
As the review of the Council’s Community Protection Service heads towards a conclusion with 
Members considering potential recommendations to be submitted to Cabinet, it may be useful for 
Members to consider a summary of the review, including what information has been considered and 
areas of interest identified for possible recommendations.  
 
Scrutiny Panel B - 30 January 2020 
 
Members held the first meeting of Scrutiny Panel B reviewing the Council’s Community Protection 
Service in January 2020. The Council’s Service Manager – Community Safety and Community 
Protection Team Leader attended this meeting to assist Panel Members with the review. They also 
delivered a presentation to the Panel, providing a background to the service. Members discussed: 
 

 Origins of the Community Protection Service 

 The Council’s vision for Community Safety set out within the Corporate Plan  

 The role of a Community Protection Officer  

 The structure and resourcing of the Council’s Community Protection Service 

 Patrol plans, hotspots, collaborative working, and operational tasking 

Members were asked to consider what positive activity and success might look like for the 
Community Protection Service. Members approved terms of reference for the review at this 
meeting.  
 
Scrutiny Panel B - 10 March 2020  
 
For the second meeting of Scrutiny Panel B on this topic, the Chairman invited three of the 
Council’s Community Protection Officers to attend the meeting and assist Members with their 
considerations.  
 
Members took the opportunity to ask various questions of the three Community Protection Officers, 
discussing: 
 

 The challenges facing the Community Protection Service 

 Airwave radios/body-worn cameras 

 Should the focus be on case work or on more reactive issues 

 The value of a visible presence in Ashfield’s Town Centres 

 The safety of CPOs when carrying out their roles 

 The value of the Integrated Services Hub 

 The need for improved utilisation of the Council’s Triage system  

At this meeting, Members also identified key areas of interest within the review to be explored at 
subsequent meetings and inform any recommendations to be made to Cabinet.  
 
Understanding Public Expectations and Perceptions 
 
At the first meeting of the Panel, Members discussed the need to ensure that the public and 
partners had clarity on the aims of the service and the role of a Community Protection Officer within 
the community. 

Page 15

https://www.ashfield.gov.uk/mediacentre/news-and-updates/ashfield-district-council-community-protection-officers-steak-out-shop-lifters/
https://www.ashfield.gov.uk/mediacentre/news-and-updates/ashfield-district-council-community-protection-officers-steak-out-shop-lifters/


Monitoring Performance 
 
Managing and monitoring performance is a key aspect of understanding how the service is meeting 
its objectives. Members were informed that the Council were currently using E-cins to record case 
information but there were identified gaps in the extraction of data within the system and far too 
much information was currently being recorded and shared via email.  
 
As part of the initial discussion, Members were informed that a system called ‘Whitespace’ was 
currently being explored to assess its suitability to record CPO activity. As part of the review, the 
Panel agreed that the current method (E-cins & email) was not an effective method to manage 
demands and monitor performance. Members discussed the possibility of gaining a demonstration 
of the system to ascertain its value for the section. 
 
Priorities of the Service 
 
As an introduction the review, Members received a presentation from the Service Manager, setting 
out the aims of the service, which were identified as undertaking a problem solving approach to 
address on-street anti-social behaviour, environmental and nuisance related issues, which affect 
the quality of life for residents in Ashfield. 
  
Community Protection Officers provide a uniformed patrol presence within Ashfield’s town centres 
and communities, spending time in communities conducting high visibility patrols, engaging with 
residents, visitors, and businesses, and proactively challenging perpetrators of anti-social 
behaviour. Furthermore, they also carry out “safe and well” checks to vulnerable members of the 
community. 
 
Work Planning (Proactive/Reactive) 
 
Members agreed that ensuring there was a consistent approach to understanding the main priorities 
of the service and ensuring that work planning was proactive in addition to being reactive to issues 
of need was essential including identifying hotspots, in collaboration with our partners, and planning 
work around this information. 
 
Members also recognised that a service specific system to manage demands would assist both the 
Community Protection Officers and the service. 
 
Partnership Working 
 
Partnership working is intrinsic to the Community Protection Service with the integrated services 
hub and the Ashfield Community Partnership. Members previously discussed the importance of 
ensuring all within the partnership are working collaboratively with adequate effort and input from all 
agencies.  
 
Public Consultation 
 
Members identified the importance of ascertaining and managing public perception of the 
Community Protection Service, as a key discretionary service. This could be achieved through 
exploring an appropriate public consultation exercise involving residents and businesses in Ashfield. 
 
Consideration was also given to the Scrutiny Review of Neighbourhood Wardens undertaken by 
Scrutiny Panel A in 2009. Members found that many of the areas for improvement raised in 2009 
remain relevant to the service presently.  
 

Page 16



Scrutiny Panel B – 23 July 2020 
 
Following some delays to the progress of the Community Protection Service review, Members took 
the opportunity to refamiliarize themselves with the work of the review, including reassessing the 
originally set terms of reference and identified areas of interest.  
 
At this meeting, Members were joined by several Officers from the Council’s Community Safety 
Team, as well as the Portfolio Holder for Community Safety and Leader of the Council. A discussion 
took place between the Panel and Officers/Executive Members in attendance, focusing on: 
 

 The responsibilities of Community Protection Officers, with information shared on the diverse 
range of requests CPOs are often tasked with. 
 

 The Panel’s vision for the Community Protection Officer role, focusing on the correct mix of 
responsibilities between reactive enforcement and the proactive approach to ensuring 
wellbeing within the District.  
 

 Partnership working and arrangements in place with the Police, including information sharing 
and training needs.  
 

 Members also acknowledged the powers available to Community Protection Officers. 
 

 No new powers have been granted to Community Protection Officers during the COVID-19 
pandemic.  
 

 Members were shown an example of the data captured by Community Protection Officers, 
including: 

o Date and time of incident 
o What powers were used 
o Location 
o Welfare visits 
o Surveys 
o Referrals to other agencies 
o Fixed Penalty Notices issued  

 
Next Steps 
 
Members are encouraged to consider formulating recommendations to be presented to Cabinet by 
the Scrutiny Panel B Chairman ON THE 1 December 2020. Discussions can be held at the Panel 
meeting between Members and Officers to identify areas where recommendations are most 
appropriate. 
 
Following the restructure of the Council’s Community Safety section, Members may also wish to 
revisit the progress of the service and the implementation of any recommendations in 2021.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



Implications 
 
Corporate Plan: 
 
Ashfield District Council’s vision for a safer and stronger Ashfield by 2023 is set out within the new 
Corporate Plan 2019 – 2023. This includes ensuring the foundations for a good quality of life are in 
place and reducing crime and anti-social behaviour.  
 
This will be achieved through prioritising both an effective response to issues but also working on 
prevention and behavioural change. To achieve this, the Council will continue working with our 
partners to ensure people feel safe and are safe by reducing levels of crime and disorder and anti-
social behaviour. 
 
Legal: 
 
There are no direct legal implications resulting from this report. Any legal implications identified over 
the course of this review will be explored and addressed appropriately.  
 
Finance: 
 
There are no direct financial implications resulting from this report. Any financial implications 
identified over the course of this review or as part of final recommendations will be explored and 
addressed appropriately. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Risk: 
 
Any risk implications identified by Scrutiny Panel B through the course of this review will be 
presented to Cabinet within the final report.  
 

 
 
 
 
 

Human Resources: 
 
There are no direct HR implications resulting from this report. Any HR implications identified over 
the course of this review will be explored and addressed appropriately. 
 
 
 

Budget Area Implication 
 

General Fund – Revenue Budget 
 

None at this stage of the review. 

General Fund – Capital 
Programme 

Housing Revenue Account – 
Revenue Budget 

Housing Revenue Account – 
Capital Programme 

Risk 
 

Mitigation  

None at this stage of the review. 
 

None at this stage of the review. 

Page 18



Environmental/Sustainability: 
 
There are no direct environmental or sustainability implications resulting from this report. Any 
environmental or sustainability implications identified over the course of this review will be explored 
and addressed appropriately. 
 
Equalities: 
 
There are no direct equality implications resulting from this report. Any equality implications 
identified over the course of this review will be explored and addressed appropriately. 
 
Other Implications: 
 
There are no other implications resulting from this report. Any other implications identified over the 
course of the review will be explored and addressed appropriately.  
 
Reason(s) for Urgency  
 
None.  
 
Reason(s) for Exemption 
 
None.  
 
Background Papers 
 
None.  
 
Report Author and Contact Officer 
 
Shane Wright 
Scrutiny Research Officer 
s.wright@ashfield.gov.uk 
01623 457318 

Page 19

mailto:s.wright@ashfield.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To receive the minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 23 July 2020.
	4 Scrutiny Review - Community Protection Service.

